ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 24, 2005
8:40 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gene Therriaul t

Senator Hollis French

Senator Gretchen Guess via tel econference

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 83

"An Act relating to the retaining of certain privileges of a
parent in a relinquishnment and termi nation of a parent and child
rel ationship proceeding; relating to eligibility for permanent
fund dividends for certain children in the custody of the state;
relating to child in need of aid proceedings and juvenile
del i nquency proceedi ngs; and providing for an effective date.™

MOVED CSSB 83(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 84( HES)

"An Act relating to the confidentiality of investigations, court
hearings, and public agency records and information in child-in-
need-of-aid matters and certain child protection natters;
relating to immunity regarding disclosure of information in
child-in- need-of-aid matters and certain child protection
matters; anending Rules 3 and 22, Alaska Child in Need of Aid
Rul es of Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 83

SHORT TI TLE: TERM PARENTAL RTS/ Cl NA/ DELI NQUENCY CASES
SPONSCOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 26/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 24, 2005



01/ 26/ 05 (S) HES, JUD

02/ 14/ 05 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 14/ 05 (S) Moved SB 83 Qut of Committee
02/ 14/ 05 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 16/ 05 (S) HES RPT 1DP 4NR

02/ 16/ 05 (S) DP: DYSON

02/ 16/ 05 (S) NR. ELTON, WLKEN, OLSON, GREEN
02/ 23/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 23/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 23/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

BILL: SB 84

SHORT TI TLE: CHI LD PROTECTI ON CONFI DENTI ALI TY
SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 26/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 05 (S) HES, JUD, FIN

02/ 07/ 05 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 07/ 05 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 07/ 05 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 09/ 05 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 09/ 05 (S) Moved CSSB 84(HES) CQut of Committee
02/ 09/ 05 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 14/ 05 (S) HES RPT CS 4DP 1NR SAME TI TLE
02/ 14/ 05 (S) DP: DYSON, ELTON, W LKEN, GREEN
02/ 14/ 05 (S) NR:  OLSON

02/ 23/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 23/ 05 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Stacey Kraly, Senior Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 83 and SB 84

Ms. Marcia Kennai, Deputy Comm ssioner

Department of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 83 and SB 84

Ms. Linda WIson, Deputy Director
Al aska Public Defender Agency
900 W5'™" Ave Ste 200

Anchorage, AK 99501

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 24, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 83 and SB 84

M. Scott Cal der
Fai r banks, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 84

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:40:12 AM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Charlie Huggins, Getchen Guess, and Chair Ral ph
Seeki ns.

SB 83- TERM PARENTAL RTS/ Cl NA/ DELI NQUENCY CASES

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 83 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noved Version \G as the working docunent before
the conmttee. Hearing no objections, the notion carried.

8:.41: 28 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS noted no additional w tnesses were signed up to
testify on the bill

8:42:23 AM
M5. STACEY KRALY, senior assistant attorney general, Departnent
of Law (DOL) and M. Marcia Kennai, deputy com ssioner

Depar t ment of Health and Soci al Servi ces (DHSS) seat ed
t hensel ves at the w tness table.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked the wi tnesses whether there was a problem
involving mlitary service personnel regarding child custody. He
referred to Section 2.

8.43:33 AM
Senator Therriault joined the commttee.

M5. KRALY admitted the |anguage in Section 2 was baffling. She
offered to research it and get back to the conmittee.

SENATOR GUESS explained the |language was noved to another
paragraph so as to keep the |anguage referring to a national
mlitary emergency in the bill

8:.45: 28 AM
MS. LINDA WLSON, attorney, public defender agency, asked for
t he worki ng version

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 24, 2005



CHAI R SEEKI NS had his aide fax the docunent to her.

8:.47.:59 AM

M5. WLSON said she supervises the handling of child in need of
aid (CINA) cases. Section 1 [allowng the parent to retain
conditional privileges] re-establishes old practice. It can be
used to the best interest of the child but needs to go further
because it is not enforceable. If a parent relinquishes rights
and then is not allowed visitation they are not allowed to
wi thdraw their rel i nqui shnment . The termnation proceeding
happens in the CINA courts but the adoption is a different
proceedi ng. Section 1 is commendabl e but should do nore for the
parents.

8:50: 33 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS asked Ms. WIson whether it would be a detrinent
to adoptive parents if term nation were enforceable.

M5. WLSON said possibly. A nechanism in the adoption statutes
for the parents to stay involved post-term nation would hel p.

CHAI R SEEKINS said people are trying to look out for the best
interest of the child and a certain anount of authority for
adoptive parents should go along with that. He does not want to
cause prospective adoptive parents to be deterred from the
adopti on.

M5. WLSON said the adoptive ~court would consider that
ci rcunst ance.

CHAIR SEEKI NS noted often adults twist the mnds of children for
their own benefit.

8:54: 04 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS said if the court has termnated a relationship
there is a problem with the relationship. Prospective adoptive
parents can offer stronger relationships. Children can be
mani pul ated by their birth parents.

SENATOR FRENCH said in terns of finality it seens inefficient to
add provisions that undo all the work of the conditions to which
the parents are allowed visitation.

M5. KRALY said the purpose of the sentence is to have finality

with the relinquishnment in the proceedings. The Cl NA proceedi ngs
are separate and distinct fromthe adoption proceedings.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 24, 2005



8:57: 04 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Ms. W/ son the solution to her concern.

M5. WLSON said Section 1 was good but sonmewhat illusory. It
would allow the parent to retain a privilege but in reality it
is not enforceable. She suggested putting a retained privilege
in the adoption decree so the biological parent could address
their court appointed visitation rights.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether she was suggesting an anmendnent to
SB 83.

M5. WLSON said no.

8:59: 38 AM

M5. WLSON continued Section 6 would present problens with | CM
law [Indian Child Wl fare Act], which requires that before you
can termnate parental rights, the state nust show evidence. You
cannot termnate parental rights unless the state can prove
beyond a reasonable doubt (and it has to include testinony of a

qualified expert witness) that continued custody is likely to
result in serious enotional or physical damage to the child.
That is federal law. Allowing an offer of proof situation

wi t hout having an expert could be challenged legitimtely.

9:01: 39 AM
M5. WLSON continued there were many conditions in Section 6 for
soneone to reach sone sort of judicial notice.

CHAIR SEEKINS clarified her interpretation is a court could say
“A qualified wtness would have found this way so therefore |
rule this way.”

M5. WLSON said that is exactly what the paragraph is trying to
do and that is inappropriate. An expert witness is not difficult
to get.

SENATOR FRENCH said he thinks it pertains to a narrow finding in
a set of narrow circunstances. The parent would be wllfully
absenting hinmself or herself fromthe child and the situation is
that the parent cannot be found.

9:04: 30 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS agr eed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 24, 2005



SENATOR THERRI AULT suggested changing the wording on line 20 to
say “...the court may conclude that the continued custody of the
child is not in the child s best interest.”

CHAI R SEEKINS speculated there was tension between state and
federal |aw

SENATOR FRENCH sai d that was his guess.

CHAIR SEEKINS said they would be acconplishing the step by
allowing the court to insert its judgnent as a qualified expert
W t ness.

SENATOR FRENCH agr eed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted the witness has to actually conme into
court.

CHAI R SEEKI NS sai d no.
SENATOR FRENCH said, “Not if we pass this |aw.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the extra verbiage was to satisfy
the federal |aw

MS. KRALY sai d yes.

9: 06: 38§ AM

CHAI R SEEKINS asked Ms. Kraly whether it was the departnent’s
opinion the extra verbiage would satisfy tension between the
state and federal |aw

M5. KRALY said we believe so. ICWMA requires a finding by a
qualified expert and the offer of proof, which is basically what
this woul d be.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Ms. W1l son the best interest of the child.

M5. WLSON responded to run the proceedings the way federal |aw
set them up. The bill does not specify a tinme frame or whether
it was a reasonabl e search for the parent.

9:08: 32 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS asked whether the opinion of a qualified expert
w tness could be done by affidavit.

M5. WLSON stated the bill says testinony.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 24, 2005



M5. KRALY said she hadn’t thought it out. There are other issues
regarding affidavits. The prem se under Section 6 is four nonths
to a year. The court wuld also nmake the burden of proof.
Condi ti ons safeguard the absent parent.

9:11:19 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked the nunber of notices sent to a parent.

M5. KRALY infornmed currently they attenpt contact through the
Department of Corrections both in state and out; child support
enforcenment, PFDs, taxes, and they contact other jurisdictions.
They use certified nail and the public defenders.

CHAI R SEEKI NS noted there was no one else slated to testify.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said Section 6 needs clarification regarding the
presence of the expert w tness.

9:16:49 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS noted the only thing being elimnated was physi cal
presence of the expert witness.

MS. KRALY agreed. The DOL of fers nunerous proofs in CINA cases.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he is satisfied the safety and best interest
of the child was being provided for because qualified expert
Wi t nesses woul d have al ready made their concl usions.

SENATOR FRENCH added expert w tnesses were not being dispensed
of. It is just on one narrow point about absent parents.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked M. Kennai whether there is generally
prior evidence of the parents history that would |eave a
reasonabl e person to conclude the parents did not care about the
child s fate.

M5. KENNAI said many cases are |looking at parents who could
never be found fromthe very begi nning.

9:20: 24 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved CSSB 83(JUD) from commttee wth
i ndi vi dual considerations and attached zero fiscal notes. There
bei ng no objections, the notion carri ed.

SB 84- CH LD PROTECTI ON CONFI DENTI ALI TY

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 24, 2005



9:21:13 AM

M5. MARCIE KENNAI, deputy conmi ssioner, Ofice of Children' s
Services (OCS), Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS),
advised SB 84 proposes new child protection confidentiality
| egislation that would allow DHSS to provide nore information to
the public about agency actions surrounding child abuse and
neglect cases. The child's privacy wuld continue to be
protected while providing for sonme disclosure of state agency
information. The bill would nmake OCS nore accountable to the
public. The state, municipality, officers and enpl oyees woul d be
i mune from any action for danages based on infornmation that
m ght be di scl osed.

SB 84 would do four nmjor things:
Open all CNA hearings to the public except 1in certain
ci rcunst ances
e Allow DHSS to release the nane and picture of a child in a
CI NA proceeding for the purposes of achieving pernanency
* Expand the circunstances under which DHSS is required to
share confidential information
» Allow DHSS to share confidential information wth the
publ i ¢ under three circunstances:
Parental disclosure
Per petrator charge with abuse or negl ect
Report of harmresulting in fatality or near fatality

9:25:47 AM

States have been debating the pros and cons of relaxing the
confidentiality statutes for years. Sone pros include increasing
public awareness and education of child abuse in general. It
woul d provide for better accountability of staff and of the
courts.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked Ms. Kennai how the departnent would
comment once a parent has gone public.

MS. KENNAI responded DHSS woul d respond with discretion and only
concerni ng whether the departnent acted accordingly. The public
deserves to hear how the departnment acted in certain cases.

9:27: 24 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked the section of SB 84 that describes that.

CHAI R SEEKI NS advised the version before the committee was 24-
GS1082/ G

MS. KRALY answered it was Section 13.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 24, 2005



SENATOR FRENCH noted the type of information the departnent nay
di sclose is in subsection (I).

9:30: 13 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS asked whether there was a requirenent that the
depart nent consul t W th an att orney bef ore di scl osi ng
i nformation.

M5. KRALY answered Page 8 line 4 contenplates consultation with
a prosecuting attorney.

CHAI R SEEKI NS noted t he departnent could al ready do that.

9: 32: 38 AM

M5. KRALY clarified Section 13 would allow the DHSS and/or the
DOL to respond to allegations and reports of what they have done
in direct response to a case.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked Ms. Kraly the reason for subsection (I).

MS. KRALY advised it was to make sure of a coordinated effort
between OCS and the district attorneys office.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether the departnent would respond to an
i nterested individual or a neighbor.

M5. KRALY said under subsection (n) the statute requires the
departnent to adopt regulations to interpret the duties under
the section. There would be a limtation on who could ask for
the informati on and whom the departnent could reply to.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked the definition of “persons of legitinmate
interest.”

M5. KENNAI responded the parents and sonetines the press.

SENATOR HUGA NS expressed that notification of the press nakes
hi m nervous.

9:37: 08 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked who has authority within the departnents.

V5. KENNAI advised the comm ssioner or conm ssioner’s designee.

9:40: 33 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 24, 2005



SENATOR FRENCH asked whether the DHSS and the DOL would be
opposed to adding |anguage that identifies the conmm ssioner or
the commissioner’s designee as the person responsible for
di scl osing information.

M5. KENNAI noted she thought it was already in the bill but
couldn’t locate it.

Chair Seeki ns announced a brief recess at 9:41:19 AM
Chair Seekins reconvened the neeting at 9:47:36 AM

M5. KENNAI clarified the DHSS has a clear policy on who speaks
to media. For purpose of SB 84 she suggested to add verbiage in
Section 13 to clarify the comm ssioner or the conm ssioner’s
desi gnee as the person responsi ble for nmedia conmuni cati on.

CHAI R SEEKI NS proposed Anmendment 1.
Section 13(k), delete “the departnent”, and insert “the
commi ssi oner or the conmm ssioner’s designee...”

Hearing no objections, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

SENATOR GUESS asked Ms. Kraly to comrent on why the bill uses
the word “may” instead of “shall” in Section 13(l).

9:49: 57 AM

V. KRALY responded the reason is because of differing
circunstances. The departnent wants the ability to Kkeep
informati on out on a case-by-case anal ysis.

9:51:40 AM
SENATOR FRENCH shared the concern of Senator Quess.

CHAIR SEEKINS noted the concern was regarding discretionary
di scl osure.

M5. KRALY agreed that nade sense.

SENATOR GUESS pr oposed Anendment 2.
Section 13 (I)(1) delete “may” and insert “shall...”

Hearing no objections, Anendnent 2 was adopt ed.
9:54: 26 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS proposed Anendnent 3.
Section 13 (1)(2) delete “may” and insert “shall...”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 24, 2005



9:55:51 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT obj ected and then w thdrew his objection.

Hearing no further objections, Arendnent 3 was adopt ed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT questioned the reason for the verbiage of
“non-di sclosure” in Section 14. He cited an exanple of why the
departnment should he held responsible for not notifying sonmeone
of inportant informtion.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether Section 14 deals with infornation
request ed by individuals.

9:58: 05 AM
MS. KRALY responded with respect to Section 13, yes.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he has no problem i ndemifying disclosure or
non-di scl osure of requested information from people with a
substantial interest.

SENATOR FRENCH asked the intersection and separation between
juvenil e delinquency information and CI NA i nformation.

M5. KRALY said it was an inportant distinction. The provisions
in Section 14 deal with the disclosure or non-disclosure in CINA
proceedi ngs under Title 47.10. The juvenile justice process is a
separate process governed by separate statutes. There are
i nstances where they do overlap such as when a child in a CINA
case is also under custody. If OCS has custody of the child
Section 14 would apply for the purpose of the DOL with respect
to the juvenile justice process. SB 84 doesn’'t envision
addr essi ng those issues.

10: 01: 03 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked whether it would be a CINA case in the
exanple of a 16 year old harm ng a 14 year old.

M5. KRALY sai d probably not.
SENATOR FRENCH asked what if it happens in the sane househol d.
M5. KRALY noted it woul d depend on the situation.

SENATOR FRENCH expressed concern regarding inmunity and tota
i ndemmi fi cation.

10: 04: 28 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 24, 2005



M5. KRALY explained in a gross negligence scenario the DOL and
DHSS woul d have a discussion. The grant of authority could be
limted so that gross negligence could be excluded from
i mmuni ty.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said there is now conplication because of the
separation of CINA and the juvenile justice system He asked the
recourse when non-disclosure results in harm

10: 07: 15 AM

M5. KRALY said the general immunity provisions under Title 9
would provide sone level of protection. An enployee acting
within the scope of their enploynment would be defended by the
state. Currently AS 47.10.093 provides a list of circunstances
where the departnent and its enployees can disclose information
to a guardian ad litem and to other agencies working wth
children. The non-disclosure conponent of the immunity section
under Section 14 may be directly related to Section 13 where the
commttee just anmended “may” to “shall.”

10: 11: 17 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS sai d that nakes sense.

M5. KRALY added now that the bill is changed there is no ability
not to disclose so there wouldn’t be a non-di scl osure i ssue.

MR, SCOIT CALDER testified in opposition of SB 84.

10: 12: 34 AM

MR. CALDER identified two different classes of victins, those
who society is trying to help and those created by the DOL and
DHSS. Peopl e who have been victim zed by the departnment can pin
point circunstances of negligence by the departnent. He
suggested the burden should be on the departnent to decide who
has a legitimte interest. A parent absent any crimnal priors
has the highest need-to-know basis regarding information of
their own child.

10:17: 39 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Calder his opinion about disclosing
information that could interfere with a crimnal investigation.

MR. CALDER said the interest of the parent to guard the best
interest of the child is nore inportant for the well being of
society than it is the interest of the departnent. Mst people
do the right thing, he said, and it should be inportant to
protect the rights of the majority of the people.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 24, 2005



10: 21: 00 AM
MR. CALDER asserted the law should protect innocent people
first.

10: 23: 09 AM

M5. LINDA WLSON, deputy director, Alaska Public Defender
Agency, said the first part of SB 84 is a significant change to
current statute. Eighteen states have open CI NA hearings but the
majority of states keep them closed. There is a |lot of sensitive
information disclosed in the court cases and it wll require
excessive litigation to close the hearings. Wtnesses nay
hesitate to testify due to the open forum

CHAI R SEEKINS held the bill in commttee.

10: 29: 59 AM

There being no further business to conme before the conmittee, he
adj ourned the neeting at

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 24, 2005



